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CHAIR MOLINA: .. . (gavel). .. Public Works and Traffic Committee meeting for
November 18th is now in session. Good morning, Members. We have in
attendance are Members Pontanilla, Kane, and Hokama.
Excused is
Vice-Chairperson Tavares. Members, we have one item on our agenda today
that is Item PWT 18 with regards to outdoor lighting. But before I do that, the
Chair would like recognize staff in attendance here today. We have our
Committee Analyst Mr. Lance Taguchi; Committee Secretary Jo-Ann Sato, and
from the Corporation Counsel's Office we have Cindy Young. And representing
the Public Works Department, we have Mr. Ralph Nagamine in place of the
Director Mr. Gilbert Coloma-Agaran. Before we proceed with discussion of our
item, we have people who are here to testify on the item. And before we do that,
the Chair would like to go over a few ground rules with the public. You will have
three minutes to testify with a minute to conclude. Please turn off all cell phones
and pagers to minimize any disruptions we could possibly have today. And the
Chair would like to ask you that before you testify, please state your name and
any organization that you may be representing. So, with that being said, let us
proceed with public testimony. First to testify is Phil Johnson of the Wailea
Community Association .
. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

MR. JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, Members of the Committee, I'm Phil Johnson. I'm a Design
Covenants Manager for the Wailea Community Association. I'm also a member
of the Hotel Association and the Maui AlA, and we've been working and following
this bill closely and the previous bill closely. We submitted to the Chair a, some
proposed amendments. I'm not sure if those amendments got, if that got
disseminated. First of all, we all recognize that the, the Observatory needs some
help here, and we're looking at ways of how do we do that. The major thing that
we are proposing as an amendment is to allow fully shielded lights or lowpressure sodium lights for a Class II, which is parking lots and streetlights.
Briefly, we feel that we wrestled with this whole topic during the process of the
Subcommittee meeting and trying to retrofit lights and the expense of retrofitting
lights and going through the process. It's not a simple process of just changing a
light bulb. You have to change a head. You have to change the arm. You may
have to change the pole. Also, low pressure sodium lights require, because they
have a significantly different lighting pattern and type of light, you're going to
require more light poles. After also talking with one of the engineers that was on
Big Island during when this bill was originally passed, the bill there had a lot of
community support. There was not a big compliance issue for people. There
were relatively few hotels at the time. There were no big box stores or the
shopping centers at the time. So, when all of these items or all of these buildings
were built, they could build, design and build from the ground up. Now, we have
the opposite case where we have to retrofit all of these lights. It's going to be
very hard to get compliance with low-pressure sodium. Parking lots will have to
be torn out to be able to relamp parking lots. So, we feel that if we can, if we can
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get the full cutoff lights as an addendum or low pressure sodium, you're going to
get much easier, much better compliance, much, people can, can budget this in,
in a 10-year life span, 1O-year span to get all of these lights changed.
A couple other items that we have recommended. Everybody is in support of
getting rid of mercury vapor lights. We've also recommended that walkway lights
be moved into a Class I lighting. We feel that most walkway lights are very color,
color light necessary. You need to have light, the color balance and be able to
see lights. Also, we're having a new wave of lighting come on. LED lights, the
lights similar to what we see in traffic lights are now being, coming onto the
market place. And those lights will be excellent for walkway lights if they're fully
shielded, however, the present bill says those walkway lights have to be lowpressure sodium.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. JOHNSON: We've also ended up revising Table 14A at the request of the, the
Planning or the building department, the Public Works Department and taking out
low pressure or taking out the lumen requirements and, and making it a much
more easier process to read. So, there's several major and some minor items in
there, and we hope you would look at these. All, all of these organiZations are
looking at trying to be able to make this a win-win situation for everyone, and how
does the County as well as the private sector come into compliance with this.
Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Johnson. Committee Members, questions for
the testifier? Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Mr. Johnson.
MR. JOHNSON: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: In your statement, you said that one of the
problems in regards to parking lights that you may have to rip up the parking
facility to I guess rebuild to, to have low pressure sodium lights put up.
MR. JOHNSON: That's my understanding. Again, I'm not an engineer. But in
discussions that we had during the subcommittee meetings that, that refitting
existing parking lots with low pressure sodium because all of these lights, parking
lot lights are required to have by standard and by statute a minimum amount of
lighting, when you replace the heads with, and poles with low pressure sodium,
you do not have, potentially, you do not have enough lights there. So, you're
going to have to be redoing parking lots. That I don't know to what extent that
will be, but it is a real potential problem.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Meaning additional poled lights.
MR. JOHNSON: That's correct, as well as all of the intersections and streetlights, too.
It's the same, there's a very similar problem for County and State highways.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. JOHNSON: Sure.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Any questions? Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Good morning, Mr. Johnson. Thank you for
being here. And forgive me if "m missing it because you're talking about ripping
up all these things. And I, and I heard you towards the end of that part of your
testimony talking about the 1O-year period of exemption or having that 10-year
period or window. In our previous meeting, I believe it was myself who threw out
maybe even 20 years was something that we have to look at. I mean we were
trying to look at something that was achievable, a realistic achievement of any
person who has to do some sort of transition. But the exemptions are clear that
this doesn't impact anything that exists today. Am I, am I incorrect in drawing
that conclusion? Right now, we're talking about, and it's right in the exemptions,
"all of the lighting fixtures approved by the County prior to this chapter are
exempt from the installation and shielding requirements of this chapter for a
period of 10 years".
MR. JOHNSON: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So, am I to understand your comments are saying that 10
years is not enough time to be able to think long term and be able to make
adjustments to accommodate revised lighting for the County, and specifically for
say a property that impacts you directly in your official capacity?
MR. JOHNSON: Well, there's several different potential problems like in Wailea we
have full cutoff lights which, actually, direct all the lights, light downward. We
lose about four or five of those lights a year due to traffic accidents mainly. And if
this bill was instituted, we would have to replace those or the County would have
to replace those lights with low-pressure sodium because the light is now
inoperable. Now, all of the rest of the lights are high-pressure sodium full cutoff
lights. Our recent discussions with Maui Electric says there's nothing wrong with
those light fixtures, they should last easily another 60 years or longer. So, that's
one instance. The other thing I think we're looking at is a 20-year time span. I
think everybody agrees that's way too long for, to get, to give relief to the, to the
Observatory. If we had full cutoff lights, if we mandated full cutoff lights in
streetlights and parking lots, fully shielded lights, turned off the lights after, any
up lights after 11 o'clock, you can redo an eXisting parking lot with a fully shielded
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light much easier than you can go in and put in low-pressure sodium. You could,
many of the lights are, are, it's possible to actually shield them with the existing
fixture or you can replace the head. It's not going back and replacing the head,
the pole, the arm, and everything. So, a fully shielded light is a significantly
easier, cheaper, faster. You'll get much better compliance with that as opposed
to having to go back and, and recalculate do you have enough light under lowpressure sodium and, and what kind of changes do you have to do, which, which
we believe would be significantly more.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you for your response. The intent of this bill through
the discussions of the Subcommittee, it seemed that the Observatory's
realization was not to, well, was to allow further degradation, and that they
accepted the fact that what is, is and that's why the language came up for the
exemption for the existing stuff we're not going to touch. And that I think came in
later on as far as the transition to eventually get everything back down farther.
So, whether it's 10 years or 20 years, I'm asking you, is it your understanding
now that, 'cause you drew a conclusion in your comments, and I'm trying to
understand it, so forgive me if I'm being long-winded. You're saying that 20
years is far too much a time ...
MR. JOHNSON: For the Observatory I believe that ...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: ... for the Observatory to get relief. But, but I think they've
already agreed that what is, is and although it's, it's a degraded situation, the
intent is to prevent further degradation. So, the time is meant to, if, if 10 years is
not enough to help do a transition and for people who are being impacted by it
adversely for, to do transitions, the longer the time it seems like the, the, the
better able to plan for long-term transition and it being cost achievable to do
those transitions. So, I'm, I'm, I guess I'm trying to understand what position
you're taking when you're talking about, well, the 10 years is creating a problem,
but 20 years is too long. So is there something in between there that we need to
look at? Am I hung up on time and I'm, I'm off from what you're trying to say?
You know I'm trying to decide on this and I need your help because you played a
significant role in this. So I want to understand where you're coming from.
MR. JOHNSON: We think the Observatory, first of all, needs help more than in a
20-year time span. Okay. We believe that the, the, going to a fully shielded light
on the major lights like streetlights and parking lot lights would be able to be
achieved under a full, much faster and much easier say within 10 years as
opposed to going to a low pressure sodium light. So, if, if you say, well, we'll go,
we'll allow the low pressure sodium but then we're going to go out 15 or 20 years,
how long does that help, how does that really help the Observatory? We think,
the other, the other issue that we're looking at I think is the compliance. Who is,
who is going to be mandating this? Like we've talked about this before is that
the, the County owns the majority of the polluting lights. And are you, you're
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going to budget, a figure that was brought up, and I'm not sure how accurate this
is, that there's $5 million worth of lighting that would need to be changed by the
County alone just in streetlighting. So you'd have to budget $500,000 a year for
10 years. Does that do it? I don't know. But there's a major segment there that
needs to be budgeted. Also, we have, as you well know, a streetlighting
ordinance already in place that said by October of this year all Maui County lights
were going to be full cutoff lights. It was never funded. So, you know, are we
creating yet another bill 20 years out or 15 years out that is, that that never gets
implemented?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Johnson. Thank you for your comments.
Chair, thank you for allowing me the latitude.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Okay, members, next to testify on Item 18 is Bill George.
MR. GEORGE: Aloha, Chairman Molina. Aloha, Committee Members. My name is Bill
George. I'm representing myself today. After your last meeting on this subject, I
again checked the International Dark Sky Association's website. I found a draft
of their model lighting ordinance. The model lighting ordinance was brought to
my attention when we first started this about three years ago or so. The ad hoc
committee that's, that wrote the original ordinance brought it up ... International
Dark Sky. So I've been following them, and I was asking them. This has been a
few years in the making. You can ask one of the ad hoc committee members
actually how long it's been done. The International Dark Sky Association was
first started by a Doctor Crawford, an astronomer himself. And he founded
International Dark Sky Association with the purpose to curtail and reverse the
degradation of the nighttime visual environment in the night sky. I personally feel
that Maui County could probably be the first community in the world to adopt this
ordinance. And with a few minor changes, it would become a model for the
whole world. I believe that there are critical flaws in the presently proposed
ordinance. So I think that this one, it's already written, we could make a few
changes to it. They actually have on the website potential changes under each
section that a community could pick up. That's about all I want to say today. So
if there are any questions I'll try and answer 'em. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none. Thank you.
MR. GEORGE: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify we have Richard Wainscoat from the University of
Hawaii Institute for Astronomy.
MR. WAINSCOAT: My name is Richard Wainscoat. I'm an astronomer at the Institute
for Astronomy at the University of Hawaii. Good morning. Today, you'll be
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discussing a very precious resource that is being stolen from the people of Maui - the night sky. It has been an insidious theft. Light by light, the night sky has
become brighter. The Milky Way is gradually fading from view. Try to remember
what the sky looked like 30 years ago and what it looks like tonight. Next time
there's a power outage, go outside and look at the sky. See what is being taken
from you. You remember there was a big power outage on the east coast of the
United States, people looked up at the sky and they saw stars again.
Lights have been chosen based on how they look in the daytime, not on how
they function at night. Streetlights have been chosen based on what was bought
last year, not on what is best for road safety and best for MauL Lights are being
chosen without thought of impact on neighbors, impact on wildlife, impact on
road safety, or impact on public health. There's now no place in Maui County
with a truly dark sky. You have to go to the Big Island if you want to see a dark
sky. The loss can be reversed by proper regulation. Light by light as fixtures
wear out, they should be replaced by well-designed fixtures that do not shine
light upwards. Excessive lighting such as lights being used as a form of
advertising needs to be eliminated. When astronomical observations started on
Haleakala many years ago, light pollution was not a problem. As Maui's lighting
has brightened and Maui has grown, the impact on the Observatory has grown.
Now half of the sky is compromised for astronomy. Over about ten years or so,
with gradual introduction of fully shielded fixtures, about a factor of two reduction
in light pollution can be achieved. However, Maui will grow during this time, so
shielding alone cannot restore Haleakala's sky for astronomy. Use of lowpressure sodium lamps, which astronomers can more effectively filter out is
necessary for Haleakala to continue as an important observatory and for it to
develop. Use of low-pressure sodium lamps is most important in the areas close
to Haleakala. I ask you to pass careful legislation that will restore the night sky
over Maui County so that our children, and grandchildren, and visitors can enjoy
the splendors of the night sky. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Dr. Wainscoat.
Member Kane.

Committee Members, questions?

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Wainscoat, thank you for your
testimony. Filtering out obtrusive light, is it, how, how, how do you folks measure
the capability of filtering the farther you get away from say let's use Haleakala as,
as an example, Haleakala? If we're looking at a light source, say like Lahaina
side, the west side of Maui versus Central Maui, is there a difference as
far ... say, say we have high sodium in Lahaina and we do a limit that's a circle
around Central Maui, you know, Upcountry and down into Central Maui? Is
there, is there scientific evidence that shows that the farther light is away, the, the
easier it is for filtering?
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MR. WAINSCOAT: The, the farther the light source is away, the less impact it has.
And it goes by a power of about 2.5. So, if you go two times further away, it's
going to be about, about six times less light.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Has there been any correlation done for Haleakala as far
as how the impact is based on you got light sources are impacting the mountain
and correlating it with say South Maui, Central Maui versus West Maui?
MR. WAINSCOAT: We're trying to do it. It's very difficult because the light from say
Central Maui mixes with the light from Wailea and so on. And you can't easily
see some light that's overhead whether it comes from the west or the northeast
and so on. What, what is very clear is that the blue light is, is the worst. And it's
for exactly the same reason that the, the daytime sky is blue. The molecules of
air absorb the blue light and then sort of scatter it back to the Observatory. So
the biggest trouble for astronomy is blue light, and the sky is the very darkest in
the blue at night when the moon is down. So that's the most precious part of the
spectrum.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Thank you for your comments. Chair, thank
you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good morning, sir. In your comments,
you spoke about lights being replaced when they need to be replaced. Am I
hearing that the existing streetlights that we have or any lights that we have
today, if they need replacement that the replacement should be low pressure, low
pressure sodium lights?
MR. WAINSCOAT: I think for astronomers the strong preference would be for them to
be replaced by fully shielded low-pressure sodium lights.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Not as a massive change out, only when the lights
go out.
MR. WAINSCOAT: I think for astronomy, if, if you are able to, to stop by changing out
the lights in the communities that are very close to the summit like Kula and that,
that area, those have the biggest impact. There's no question about that. The,
the lights that are in close proximity to the Observatory have the biggest effect.
And, for example, there's a high school there that has a lot of big sporting lights
and somewhere in the future if those could be replaced by fully shielded lights
that, that shine down, the sports players would be happier and the astronomers
would be happier. So that would be another single source that has a big impact
on the astronomy.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, what I'm trying to say is only when they need
to be replaced that we do that.
MR. WAINSCOAT: I think we're trying to be realistic and, and I know, we know that the
County doesn't have a bottomless bag of money. I think ten years would be what
we would aim for. I think asking for it to be done in shorter than that may, may
be unrealistic. The city of Calgary is something that you could take a look at.
They've actually, they have replaced all of their 150 watt partially shielded high
pressure sodium lights with 100 watt fully shielded lamps. So, they've actually
funded their entire redo of the lighting in the whole city by reduced, by reducing
energy costs. If you could find reduced energy costs as a way to fund gradual
changes of lights that would be something that we could consider. You may be
able to achieve cost savings by using fully shielded instead of partially shielded
lights.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Committee Members, any other questions for the
testifier? The Chair has one question. Dr. Wainscoat, in your testimony you
mentioned that the use of LPS is important in areas close to Haleakala. Can you
give me a specific, I mean how close are we talking about? Just a couple of
miles. I would guess the surrounding community would be Kula. Could the use
of LPS just in that area be a compromise and reach your objective to reduce the
amount of night sky? Because there is controversy with the use of LPS as you
very well know. Can I get your comments on that?
MR. WAINSCOAT: It would help but you're putting me on the spot. I actually have on
my computer but not readily available the amount of light pollution that every
community here contributes to the summit. I could share that with you after,
afterwards. But Kula I mean if you're, if you're talking about biggest bang for the
dollar, that is the place. The closer you are to the Observatory, on a limited
budget, that's the place to change the lights. If you want my, me to put my
astronomer's hat on and say what I'd like, I think at least as far out as to include
Wailuku, Kahului, Kihei, Wailea. Lahaina is less important. Molokai is relatively
unimportant. Lanai is relatively unimportant.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Any other questions for Dr. Wainscoat? Seeing
none. Thank you very much, Doctor.
MR. WAINSCOAT: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify on Item 18 is Steve Sutrov to be followed by
Lani Correa.
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MR. SUTROV: Good morning. My name is Steve Sutrov. I'm here to testify for myself
today. I've been following this procedure for a few years now. When we first,
when the ad hoc committee first brought up the draft outdoor lighting standards
bill to Council about three years ago, there was a lot of optimism and enthusiasm
after that meeting as far as doing something good for our County and, and
keeping our County up to standards to many other communities around the
country and the world with a good outdoor lighting plan. At that time, there was
even one Council person that thought we should just adopt what we had and
then adjust it. And I think we might have been better off doing that at this point.
We've gone with a few years of Subcommittee, and a lot of research, a lot of
information, a lot of testimony. And after a lengthy period last year, we resumed
these meetings and we're going backwards I feel somewhat. Going, picking the,
the Big Island's ordinance and working from the ground up again on that. And
we're eliminating a lot of the important parts of what was incorporated with all the,
all the planning in the couple years before that. I feel like right now we're, we're
not moving forward very well on this. There's still a lot of catching up from
different people as far as information and, and fees that were already gone over
as far as the importance of low-pressure sodium for and, and how to incorporate
it into the bill. The importance of fully shielded fixtures for all lighting including
residential. We need, we definitely need a subcommittee, I mean, an outdoor
lighting committee from the County to review particular conditions and make
rules on, on, on exceptions. I think we need rural standards versus urban
standards for when we should actually apply like streetlights for subdivisions.
Rural areas and urban areas are going to be coming closer and closer all the
time on this island, and we need to protect the differences there. And that is a
rural area should not be required to have streetlights. People in rural areas don't
want streetlights. And that, if you don't believe me, take up a drive up through
Kula and see all the lights that have been turned off and request to turn off. And
other subdivisions that never had 'em. I talked to the neighbors. They don't want
streetlights in the neighborhood. It's been proven that lighting, streetlights do not
deter crime. You need them at intersections for safety reasons. Turning areas
on, on and low grade configurations for safety. But putting streetlights in a
certain interval in a neighborhood situation, it's just wasted energy and it's not
what the people in the rural area want. And that should be incorporated in our
County Code ...
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. SUTROV: ... which is not. I'll finish up here real quick. I feel that what we need
to do is, is just refocus on our major concerns which is full cutoffs on everything,
low pressure sodium where, where it can be used in, in streets, streets and in
parking lots, time limits on their use. We've got to enforce that. That's very
important. A business closes, the lights should go off. And the outdoor lighting,
you got a standards committee that needs to be formulated and rural standards
for, for streetlighting. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Steve. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none. Thank you. Next to testify we have Lani Correa to be followed by
Bud Pi krone.
MS. CORREA: Good morning, Chair Molina, and the Members of the Public Works
Committee. First of all, on behalf of the 120 members of the Maui Hotel
Association, we want to express our sincere mahalo to all of you for allowing us
another opportunity to present recommendations to the Outdoor Lighting
Ordinance. Please know that the Maui Hotel Association and its members truly
As environmentally
support having an Outdoor Lighting Ordinance.
conscientious citizens and businesses here on Maui, we too want to assist and
be part of a solution that will address quality of light, protecting our earth's
resource to view the night sky, while at the same time ensuring the balance for
the safety of the public is maintained.
Several representatives of our
membership met, and several of them are here this morning, and the following
are recommendations that we hope you will give serious consideration to.
Eliminate the usage of low pressure sodium for all three classes. Recommend
that all lights used at night be .. . (CHANGE TAPE) . .. remain on after 11 p.m.
must be fully shielded. Delete the term 4,050 lumens. If the ordinance is
adopted, use ... if ordinance adopts the use of fully shielded lights, recommend
reducing the phase in time to be in compliance to ordinance from 15 to 20 years
to 10 years. Recommend allowing a phase in time of 10 years and having to
replace existing outdoor light fixtures when it becomes inoperable and develop
an incentive plan, a tax credit, that will encourage businesses to come into
compliance with this ordinance earlier if approved than the 10-year requirement.
In addition, we recommend that the Public Works Committee take a look at the
International Dark Sky Association model light ordinance that I submitted. But I
have to apologize because the, what I submitted to you I was just handed a
revised or an updated version which was dated June 16, 2004. So I apologize
that the one that I gave you was a draft. And this, this public review IDSA
ordinance is, can be viewed on the website, www.internationdarkskyassociation.
Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Correa. Committee Members, questions?
Seeing none. Thank you. Next to testify we have Bud Pi krone of the Wailea
Community Association to be followed by Lee Altenberg.
MR. PIKRONE: Good morning, Chair. Good morning, Members. My name is
Bud Pi krone, General Manager of the Wailea Community Association. We have
been following this bill for some time and really applaud your efforts. I've
communicated with our hotels, our commercial members, and many
homeowners, and everybody agrees that something needs to be done. I don't
think there's any question about that as we've heard. Something needs to be
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done but there seems to be one sticking point that's gone through this entire
process and that's low-pressure sodium.
I understand the concerns by the astronomy industry that they need to, to really
control light pollution. I understand their want of LPS, but I think we have to look
at all the industries in order to get compliance, in order to get a consensus here
that is going to work for us. Two of the main concerns that have always been
brought up through this and I think that I keep hearing over and over again are
safety and also just a reasonable economical compliance of this standard. So
let's look at the safety. As you've heard before from our MPD officers, we put
them out everyday and night to serve and protect us and yet we have seem to
shove their concerns aside as fear mongering as I've seen in some of the articles
in the newspaper. Facts are that crime is going up on the island. We're
understaffed in police and they're saying that this is not going to help them.
When we look at just compliance, this was brought up before, LPS is not an easy
fix. It can be done maybe in some instances. Maybe in new lighting that will go
onto the island but to retrofit it, it's not easy. As Mr. Johnson said, it's not like
changing a light bUlb. So in order to get everybody to comply to this, I think we
have to look at what are the alternatives. And as we've heard even from, from
the astronomy industry, full cutoff does help. So if we can come to some kind of
a compromise on this and I think the compromise that has been discussed is
making full cutoff lights mandatory and LPS as possibly as an alternative or an
option for, that could be used in new construction. That would help. Or maybe in
certain areas more than, than others. So I think we have to look at all of the
different industries on this island and how they're going to accept this if we want
this to work. And what's also been recommended is to bring the times level down
from what 15 to 20 years that was originally discussed to this 10-year period to
make sure it gets done and has effect soon, and sooner than later.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. PIKRONE: I mean we really need to get this done. So, I, I hope that when we look
at this, we look at all of the industries and the alternatives that will make this an
easy compliance for everybody. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you. Next to testify we have Lee Altenberg to be followed by
Wayne Hedani.
MR. ALTENBERG: Good morning, Committee Members, Chair. To go over some of
the, the points of contention, low pressure sodium has been brought up the most,
and I think it's important that we, that we realize that the, if we look at quite
attentively the areas of collision between the, the issue of color rendition and low
pressure sodium, it's quite attentively really a minority of the outdoor lighting on
Maui. And so, certainly, where, where people congregate and it's part of the
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visitor industry, a part of nighttime activity, these are areas that I think should be
included as areas that are, where color rendition is important. These would be
considered under Class I lighting. So, for example, Front Street in Lahaina is
obviously an area where there's lots of nighttime pedestrian activity and where
color rendition is important to the aesthetics of the experience. And I think areas
such as these I think you need to be generous in your definition of Class I lighting
if you should proceed that, along this class categorization to include so that there
isn't the concern about the effects of lack of color rendition on the enjoyment of
Maui, the experience here.
However, for example, lighting along the
Piilani Highway, people don't linger around the intersections there.
Color
rendition is not of any significant consequence.
Now, the Maui Police Department has testified that it's very important for their law
enforcement to have color rendition everywhere outside at night. But for me,
looking for the evidence, for any record of evidence that that, that color rendition
has a significant impact on law enforcement, I just can't find it. And we have on
the neighboring island, the Big Island for now since 1988 has been living with
low-pressure sodium as the vast majority of their outdoor lighting, and we do not
find law enforcement having a quantifiable significant problem because of that.
So, I think it may seem like something new and something that presents
conceivable problems, but in the actual experience of police department's with
low-pressure sodium, we just don't have a record of it having a substantial
negative impact on law enforcement. And I think you have to go by decades of
experience of actual police departments around the country and around the world
with low-pressure sodium, rather than the conceivable problems that people here
are worrying about. So, I would encourage them, the Committee, to be generous
with the Class I lighting to make sure that it includes areas where color rendition
really is important.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. ALTENBERG: And, and the other point I want to emphasize is to give relief to
homeowners from inconsiderate neighbors who may decide to light up their own
properties and spill over onto neighboring properties by putting in provisions
protecting residences from light trespass. And I have e-mailed the Committee
with examples from dozens of other communities across the country and how
they, how their code protects residences from light trespass. I guess those
would be, those would be my two main points. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Dr. Altenberg. Committee members, questions for
the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Next to testify, we have Wayne Hedani
from the Kaanapali Operations ASSOCiation, Incorporated, to be followed by
Jennifer Davis.
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MR. HEDANI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My name is Wayne Hedani, and I'm
President and General Manager of Kaanapali Operations Association, Inc. This
membership represents over 5,000 units within the Kaanapali Beach Resort. We
are supportive of legislation to control light pollution as presented by the revised
Maui Hotel Association recommended ordinance covering this issue. A draft of
which was attached and provided to the Committee by myself earlier.
We believe that the MHA proposed ordinance represents a significant
improvement and sound revisions, which, if accepted, would be supported by our
members and the industry as a whole. We believe that our concerns with regard
to public safety, compliance, obsolescence, overreaching scope, and risk
management would be addressed.
I have also attached a copy of my KOA letter to the Maui News responding to
their editorial, which was critical of the Council's further deliberations. We believe
that the Council was correct in taking prudent action to consider further
amendments to the ordinance in the interest of sound pubic policy. This letter
was approved by our Board of Directors.
We also believe that the prior Big Island draft, the October draft, still contained
critical flaws such as its central theme of mandated use of low pressure sodium
lights, which we believe will eventually result in needed corrective action due to
liability and safety ramifications.
I have also attached a copy of the download from the International Dark Sky
Association of their model lighting ordinance with notes for your information.
Although the working draft is 13 pages long and much more complicated than the
MHA model, you may find that its methodology might be helpful in your
deliberations. Notably, the Dark Sky model ordinance you will find nowhere is
there a mandate for the use of low-pressure sodium lights. They do not
recommend measurement of, measurements tied to lumens but advocate the
use of wattage instead. And they accommodate different kinds of lighting with
proper shielding controls. They utilize zones with proximities to sensitive areas
such as astronomical sites. And we would advocate that a proactive approach at
encouraging implementation of shielding be provided by pursuing incentives for
early compliance in the form of tax credits or rebates.
We appreciate the Committee's consideration of our past comments and
suggestions and look forward to continuing to work with you in the interest of
protecting, improving, and enhancing Maui's natural assets for the benefit of all
members of our community. I'd be happy to take any questions that you might
have.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Hedani.
testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
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MR. HEDANI: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify is Jennifer Davis. And Ms. Davis was the last person
to sign up to testify. The Chair will give the public one last opportunity to testify
on Item 18.
MS. DAVIS: Hello, my name is Jennifer Davis. Thank you, Mr. Molina, for being here,
and, Chair, Members, thank you as well. I live in Kihei and there's a light that's
up in the sky. And astrologists may be seeing it. Maui Police Department I
believe is aware of it. There's a helicopter as well that's been observing. This
light that's in the sky, it looks like some kind of aircraft or some kind of something
or another.
I see it very clearly in the morning from Pacific Shores.
It's... (inaudible) ... This light began in 2001. January 2002 I began starting to
experience things that I wasn't really sure about. I moved to Maui and this light
here I started to see .. .I lived in Lahaina for a while, and when I traveled from my
home to wherever I was going at night, it was very clear. It just looked like a big
light following me back and forth. At the time, my lifestyle was a lot different and
I was unsure of what was going on. I, I just didn't know what to do and it just, it
still maybe seem baffling to you to, to believe something, however, there are
people in Kihei. And the Maui Police Department has had a helicopter that has
been looking out after me. It watches me go home at night. This helicopter has
been, my life is in danger. And I don't know, they're not with, they're not, this
light, the object of me being here today is for an investigation to begin for this
light that's in the sky. In the morning, I see it very clearly standing from Pacific
Shores. In the evening, it travels and it follows me where I go. The people that
are in this thing must be departing from like an airport here in Kahului. And I
know that there's, there's timeframes when the airport is opened and closed. It's
an operation I believe that the CIA may ... may want some kind of meaning to
know about. I'm the person that it's following. And the reason it's following me,
their motives behind it has a lot to do with the real estate and the legislation the
way that it's changed in the last three years. I'm, I'm coming here, and I'm
humbling, and I'm asking you. I know they're ready, the Maui Police Department
and the helicopter are watching me, and they're watching this light, and they're
questioning it. I don't know if they're teaming with this light thinking that maybe
I'm somebody or what is this light. I'm not sure what the helicopter is exactly,
what's running through his mind and what his motivations are or what he's
thinking with this light. However, this light needs to be stopped. If, if people can
find out about where, where it begins and then where it goes to to get into this
aircraft or whatever it is that's up in the sky ...
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. DAVIS: ... maybe then, maybe then we'll be able to find some solutions to it
ending. It's impacted my life. The United States of America has technologies
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that are incredible. Just like Japan and just like other countries. And this
technology is incredible too. And maybe at another time, after that light is
investigated, you'll have more of an idea of what it's doing. I know that an
astrologist was here today. I'm not sure what that, if anybody else can testify or
have seen this. But I do know for sure that the Maui Police Department or some
helicopter that's contracted knows of this light and is seeing it. And, I'm, I'm, I am
here to testify to request that, that a Federal investigation be brought about to
determine the operation of this light and what it's doing. I, I see, it seems to me
that it's an illegitimate operation. I come here, I can tell you that I'm not proud of
a lot of things in my life. And a lot of things in my life have been erased. If
anybody here has ever seen the movie, "The Forgotten".
MR. TAGUCHI: Four minutes.
MS. DAVIS: Okay, "The Forgotten", it's a story similar like that, something similar to like
that, and I'm here to testify to plead with you just for an investigation to begin to
investigate the light in the sky.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Davis. Committee Members, any questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you. The Chair will make one final request to the
public. If there's anyone else that would like to testify on Item 18, just come on
up. Ms. Woods. You can sign up upon the conclusion of your testimony.
MS. WOODS: Thank you, Mr. Chair, for allowing me a late arrival. Committee
Members, my name is Lynne Woods and I am the President of the Maui
Chamber of Commerce. I wasn't going to testify today and I did want to sit and
listen to all of the work and research that has been done by our other
associations. But one thing is being left out and it compels me to speak. The
Chamber certainly is in favor of protecting the economy and the work on the top
of the mountain. That I think we've been very clear about in the past. But as we
talk about the low-pressure sodium lights, what I need the Committee to
understand is we do not have a legal disposal system for these lights. This is, I
do believe some Federal laws that govern the disposal of low-pressure sodium
lights. And in developing an ordinance that mandate these lights, we can't forget
we need to dispose of them. We need to talk a little bit about how perhaps the
island of Hawaii does this because I don't think they've looked after that issue
either. From the business community's point of view, although the State may
often be able to exempt itself from some rules and laws, the business community
can't do that. And so if we are forced to convert to these kinds of lights for our
parking lots and our malls, et cetera, please don't forget to deal with the fact that
they do have to be disposed of. And it is my understanding, they can't go in the
landfill. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Woods.
testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
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MS. WOODS: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Is there anyone else in the gallery that would like to testify? Seeing
none, the Chair will close public testimony for today. Any objections, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Members .
• . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ••

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
10 o'clock.

Can we take a brief recess?

I don't know, like 'til

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Recess 'til 10 a.m.
RECESS: 9:52 a.m.
RECONVENE: 10:13 a.m.
ITEM NO. 18:

OUTDOOR LIGHTING (C.C. 00-125)

CHAIR MOLINA: Public Works and Traffic Committee meeting for November 18th is
now back in session. Thank you very much, Members, for that extended recess.
We are addressing Item 18 having to do with outdoor lighting. The Chair would
like to just give you background information on the latest happenings with the bill.
At the October 18, 2004, Public Works and Traffic Committee meeting, the
Committee requested certain revisions be made to the draft proposed bill, which
is modeled after the County of Hawaii's Outdoor Lighting Ordinance. In addition
to the revisions that were requested, I've instructed Corporation Counsel to make
additional revisions so the Committee could have a revised proposed bill that has
been approved to form and legality. On November 10, 2004, the Corporation
Counsel transmitted the revised proposed bill for your consideration. And in
response to some of the concerns regarding the revised proposed bill, I have
transmitted to the Committee certain proposed revisions which help address
safety and security concerns along with helping fostering consensus. The goal
for today's meeting, Members, we'll be reviewing a revised proposed bill entitled,
"A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 20, MAUl COUNTY CODE,
BY ADDING A NEW CHAPTER RELATING TO OUTDOOR LIGHTING", which
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was transmitted to the Department of Corporation Counsel on November 10,
2004. And the intent of this draft bill is to establish outdoor lighting standards for
the preservation of the night sky for astronomical research and wildlife. And,
again, this draft bill is modeled after the County of Hawaii's Outdoor Lighting
Ordinance. And, Members, if there are no objections or comments, I would like
to ask the Corporation Counsel to proceed and to go over the revisions that have
been make to the bill for further discussion. Any comments first from the body
before we proceed? Seeing none, Corporation Counsel, if you will.
MS. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You would like me to go over the revisions
that you've requested, yeah?
CHAIR MOLINA: Yes.
MS. YOUNG: By memorandum dated November 8, 2004, the Committee requested the
following revisions. One revision was to add a purpose clause. The purpose
clause is currently 20.30.010. The next change was to add language in what is
now 20.35.020, Applicability, to add language to exclude Lanai and Molokai from
the provisions of this new chapter. Then there's some housekeeping language
that was, that was requested. The next change was to have the, the, the table
that was the old, it was the old Section 20.35.060, the Committee requested that
that table be made into part of Section 20.35.04. So it's new subsection E of that
Section. The Committee requested that we, that language be added where we
left blanks on, on when it would be, on the grandfathering period. So for the
merc... So for new Chapter 20.35.040, mercury vapor lights would have to be
removed within ten years of the enactment of this bill. The Committee requested
that we change ten, that we change 20.35.050--this is new, new subsection
050(A)--and with the memorandum dated November 17, 2004, from the
Chairman, we are, we are amending the language to read, "All outdoor lighting
fixtures approved by the County or legally installed prior to this chapter's
enactment are exempt from the installation and shielding requirements of this
chapter for a period of ten years". We would recommend that that language go
on to say, "for a period of ten years from the, from the enactment of this chapter."
And, and those are really the major changes that were requested.
I'm sorry, and there's a couple of more major changes. One is to allow for rule
making authority by the Department of Public Works and Environmental
Management, and the second would be to provide for enforcement by way of
Chapter 19.530.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Are you done, Corporation Counsel?
MS. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Members, comments or questions for the
Corporation Counsel? Members, would you need a minute or two to review the
requested suggestions that have been made to the ordinance?
Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, my one question would be would it be
appropriate for this Committee to consider a penalty violation portion of this new
Chapter?
CHAIR MOLINA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. YOUNG:
The, the current language under Section 20.35.080 allows for
enforcement pursuant to 19.530(A), which would also provide for the penalties
for violation of this, of this Chapter, of Chapter 20.35.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chair Molina.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm trying to understand, 19.53 that's part of our zoning
code, so what, what?
CHAIR MOLINA: Staff.
MR. TAGUCHI: Thank you, Chairman. The changes that was, that was made to the
initial draft ordinance, we changed the enforcement chapter to correspond with
the Administrative Rules, Penalties in the Public Works Department. They also
refer to this chapter under enforcement. So, it's consistent with enforcement of I
think building codes and things like that.
MS. YOUNG: Let me just make an additional comment that although it's, this provision
or this Chapter is housed in Title 19, it does, it does allow for enforcement and
penalties for violations of Titles 12, 14, 16, 18, 19, and 20. Then this would be a
violation of Title 20.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, so that we can be clear then, violation of this
Chapter would be considered a misdemeanor and a daily fine of $1,000 and
imprisonment of one year or both.
MS. YOUNG: It would be one or the other or in certain circumstances both under
19.530.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And you would opine to us this morning that that is a
fair penalty for violation of this proposed chapter?
MS. YOUNG: I won't speak to fairness, but I will speak to legally speaking I believe that
this would not be, you know, legally excessive. It would be within the discretion
of the, of the Public Works, of Council to determine whether or not this was an
appropriate penalty. And, and also, Chapter 19.530 does provide discretion on,
on what enforcement, on what penalties are, are, are, you know, what, what the
penalties for a particular violation are.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Hokama, we have Mr. Nagamine from Public Works would
like to give additional comments.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. NAGAMINE: Yeah, if this ordinance is passed and becomes enacted, in all
likelihood what will happen is that we do already have Administrative Rules for
civil fines. And what we'll have to do is go back to those Rules and amend those
Rules to incorporate penalties for violations of this Section of the Maui County
Code. So the penalties aren't necessarily going to be $1,000 initial, $1,000 daily.
Those are the maximums that we can charge ... . (CHANGE TAPE) . ..
MS. YOUNG: ... Title of 19.530.020 which deals with criminal prosecution would only
apply to Title 19 violations. So really what we're talking about is administrative
enforcement.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So in plain language, Counselor, tell us what you just
said.
MS. YOUNG: If a person violated the language of this bill, which would be your new
Chapter 20.35, they would only be, the only penalty available would be, would be
administrative enforcement, which is a fine. So there's, there's a process that the
Department has to go through to, you know, to, to fine that person. But it would
be a fine that cannot be greater than, than $1,000 and it provides a daily, you
know, there's a daily fine that the Department could fine someone. There's,
there's, there's a one-time sum type of fine that they could fine someone. And
then there's basically remediation type of, of fine. So the Department would have
those types of fines available as penalties for violations of this Chapter.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Hokama. Member Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. As far as the penalties, is the County
itself immune from being penalized? Because I think we get the burden of as far
as replacement.
MR. NAGAMINE: That's an interesting question because I think in the definition it talks
about all governmental entities, which would include the County. And so the
County would be imposing these restrictions on itself, okay, which leads to
another interesting question in regards to light trespass. If you have, I know we
talked about light trespassing in a residential setting where one neighbor's light is
trespassing into another neighbor's property. But you might also have light
trespass from a streetlight, right, that's sitting in front of somebody's house. So
that becomes problematic, too. And I don't know if anybody, if you ever thought
of that scenario where, you know, the County could be ending up having to cite
itself because of that streetlight. So I don't know, maybe there ought to be some
further exemptions incorporated into the bill.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Committee Members, any
other questions for Mr. Nagamine of Public Works or for the Corporation
Counsel?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Question, please.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If Mr. Nagamine can share with us some comments
regarding, a comment regarding disposal of, of the low-pressure sodium fixtures
and, and lighting components. Does your Department have a concern with the
disposal, and can you tell us how the current mercury vapor fixtures are dealt
with?
MR. NAGAMINE: You know I have no, I have no personal knowledge of how those
lights are disposed. My understanding is that we have an agreement with Maui
Electric where they do the light, the bulb replacements, and, therefore, they do
the disposals. So I'm not sure how they do the, you know, what they do in terms
of getting rid of the old bulbs.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Regarding the potential new fixtures of low-pressure
sodium, do you have any comment regarding that and disposal concerns?
MR. NAGAMINE: We would, we would ... well, I think the greatest source of the low
sodium bulbs would probably be with the streetlights. And, again, I think our
contract with Maui, our arrangement with Maui Electric; they would be
responsible for the disposal.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What would the Department do on, regarding the
private sector that uses low pressure sodium, and if they show up at the Central
Maui Landfill? Would you turn them away?
Tell them to make other
arrangements?
MR. NAGAMINE: Yeah, we'd have to research as to the proper method of disposing of
those bulbs.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Hokama. Committee Members, any other
questions? And by the way, we do have in the gallery representatives from the
Parks Department, Police, Planning, with the Fire Department, and
Transportation Department available for your perusal. Member Hokama, you
had a, well, your question was related to I guess Maui Electric or was it
Mr. Nagamine mentioned Maui Electric. I do see Mr. Nakama from Maui Electric
here as well. If you would like to, if you have any questions related to ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, I was just hoping, Chairman, we could get some
comment since disposal was a concern that was brought up in comments. I'd be
interested to know, should we move forward, how we will deal with one part of
the program, which is disposal of, of old or broken fixtures. I don't know if you
have information of our sister county the Big Island and their methods or whether
we would contract and ship it off island to a more appropriate service provider or
do we take care of it and make adjustments at our landfill. I'd just be curious on
how we're going to make this program work.
CHAIR MOLINA: So noted. Question for Mr. Nagamine just for the record.
disposal of LPS is restricted from our landfills, is that correct?

The

MR. NAGAMINE: I'm not certain.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. That's too bad we don't have someone here from the Solid
Waste Department that could probably give us an answer to that, but thank you.
Members, any request for hearing from our other resource personnel on this
matter? Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: This is for the Parks Department.
CHAIR MOLINA: We have Mr. Buck. Mr. Buck, if you could come up, take a seat.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: This is a question in regards to our ball fields, our
football, football fields that are presently lit. I'm looking at Class I. If those lights
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needed to be replaced, we're looking at fully shielded. What effect would it have
as far as playing conditions?
MR. BUCK: It depends what type of, if we're going with fully shielded, the existing
facilities we would probably would have to raise the size of the poles, go up a
little bit higher and more downward method. It would depend what type of
lighting we want to have on the field. If we were to go fully shielded then we
probably would have less lighting to try to eliminate the light trespass and you'll
keep everything going down. What our Department is, is trying to do now is
anytime we build a new facility, we're taking that into concern. So if you take an
example of the Lahaina Rec. Center, if you go take a look out there, there's very
little light trespassing on the outside of that area. Everything is basically, I'm not
sure if it's fully shielded but most of the light is going down. But that, but that
meant additional pole and a little higher height and more lights on the poles. So
if we were to retrofit this, say, for example, the football stadium it would probably
cost us over, maybe over a million dollars to refit it, but I don't have that exact
figure. And as far as our other facilities, we are trying to as we go with the new
technology, you know, go with the shielded. For example, if you go to KCC,
that's fully shielded lights on a downward projection with high-pressure sodium.
We do have a concern if we were to switch over to low-pressure sodium on our
walkways that we would have more, increased dark areas. But to even, we
would have to put probably double the poles because of the amount of light that's
emitted from the low-pressure sodium. We're concerned about even with the
existing high-pressure sodium when people are walking at night. And we do
have a lot of senior citizens that do walk, you know, 3:00, 3:30, 3 o'clock,
4 o'clock in the morning when it's fully dark, about their safety being in, you know,
walking along the paths because of, there are some dark areas. I mean it's,
probably anybody can go, you know, walk at night just to see how the lighting is.
We're concerned about the low- pressure sodium in that respect that we would
probably have to increase the number of fixtures and we would just be really
concerned about the people who like to walk early mornings, their safety.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So, as far as the, the stadium itself, though, for
playing condition, the safety aspect when, when we need to replace those lights,
do you see any concerns or do you have any concerns regarding safety of the
people that's participating in sports?
MR. BUCK: The football stadium, the lighting right now is designed for, because of the
various, we've had the Hula Bowl and various televised events, you know, the
lighting is for, more for TV purposes. You can go down a little bit lower
foot-candles, without
having an engineer. I don't know how much far we
can go down for safety, but you could have a little less lighting in a football
stadium and still have safety of a player. But the stadium was designed for, to
get the maximum lighting. We do know that there is some overspill. We are,
probably in the next couple years, are looking at we have to probably replace a
-
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lot of the lights on that football stadium. Right now, I don't know what the cost
would be. At that time, we would probably look, we would if this ordinance go in,
we would have to go in and retrofit the football stadium with fully shielded lights.
So you wouldn't get the upward glare or the light trespass to the adjoining
property. Now, the one thing about the football lights is that you do have lights
on the backside of the, you know, the, Kahului side of the stadium. You do have
lights point out towards the parking lot for security purposes. With this light, if
with this new lighting ordinance going in then that's one of the areas we would
have to look at is to take those lights down because they are shining at an angle,
and we would probably have to tear up the parking lot and, and put in fully
shielded lights.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Mr. Buck, one question on, regarding people walking
around the parks. We have our lights on after 11 o'clock in the park. So which,
you have these people are walking on it early in the morning in our parks and we
have our lights on in there? Can I get clarification on that?
MR. BUCK: Yes, we do. And as the ordinance reads, for example, we do have the
lights coming on at the football stadium at 5 o'clock in the morning at the request
of a lot of our senior walkers. Now the ordinance says, read it says, special
activities. I could foresee those lights being on for maybe to setup for a special
event or whatever. But having 'em on seven days a week at five in the morning, I
don't think that's, you know, in compliance of the Code. I would need clarification
on that. If that's the case, then we would probably would have to not turn on the
big lights and probably would install better walking lights around the track or
either close it off to the public walking at night. You want to walk early in
mornings or they, we would have to insist that they work to put, upgrade the
walking lights around the perimeter, you know, inside perimeter behind the
bleachers for the walkers. But a lot of the walkers like to walk the track and that's
why the lights are on early in the morning.
One other comment I would like to make is, is regards to the disposal of the lowpressure sodium. That is a concern for the Parks Department just like anything
else for disposal. If people, say private businesses, or private individuals do not
have a place to dispose it, it's going to end up in the landfill anyway because it's
going to be probably dumped. From past experiences of the problems that we're
having with illegal dumping in the park dumpsters. Somebody will probably say,
hey, I'm just going to throw it in the park's dumpster and it will be the Parks
problem. I just wanted to make that comment.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Members, any other questions for Mr. Buck from the
Parks Department? The Chair would like to request Mr. Nakama from Maui
Electric if there are no objections. I have a question on disposal.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR MOLINA: Good morning, Mr. Nakama. Thank you for being here. May I ask
how Maui Electric I guess the issue of disposal of LPS has come up, can I get a
comment from you regarding the disposal of LPS as it relates to Maui Electric?
MR. NAKAMA: I can't comment on LPS but high-pressure sodium we do package them
off to the mainland for disposal.
CHAIR MOLINA: I see. Okay. Any comments on the disposal of LPS, though,
otherwise, from what you know?
MR. NAKAMA: We're not aware of the requirements.
CHAIR MOLINA: I see. Okay. Committee Members, any questions for Mr. Nakama
from Maui Electric? Seeing none.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is that also applicable for the mercury vapor fixtures?
That, that's also shipped off the island?
MR. NAKAMA: We do not have any mercury vapor.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We don't have any of those concerns anymore?
MR. NAKAMA: No. No.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Do you have a contract with a service provider on the
mainland to take all of your high-pressure sodium?
MR. NAKAMA: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Do you have a cost that you can share with us?
MR. NAKAMA: I don't know the cost right now.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. I'm done.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Hokama.
Mr. Nakama from Maui Electric?
Seeing none.
Mr. Nakama.
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MR. NAKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, any other questions for our resource personnel or
for Public Works or Corporation Counsel prior to the Chair's recommendation?
Before the Chair makes his recommendation, I would like to ask each Member if
you have any considerations or revisions to the bill that is before you today or
any comments. The Chair will start first with Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: At this time, no.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I await your recommendation, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Not at this time.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, so first I'd like to start off by saying it's been a long
time. This bill first came into Committee even before I came onto the County
Council back in 1999. I became your Public Works Chair in January of 2001.
And we've been working a long time on this bill. It is somewhat controversial.
There are some pros and cons to this bill. We've put in a lot of time. A
subcommittee was formed and a lot of information was extracted. And we've
heard concerns from the business community, as well as the law enforcement
community, and the science community. Personally, for the Chair, I'm ready to
vote on this matter and have it sent out of Committee, but I would like to hear
from you first before I call for the vote, if that is something this body would like to
proceed with today.
The Chair is a little disturbed with some of the information that was dropped off at
the last minute. We've had a lot of time to address these matters. However, the
Chair does appreciate the information that was dropped off. The, I guess
proposed bill that was dropped off recently by the Maui Hotel Association, while I
can appreciate the information that was shared with the body, I am somewhat
disappointed at the timing of it. But I will always be open to receiving comments
and concerns from all sections of the public. But I would hope that, being that
this bill has been alive in Committee, or proposed bill has been alive in
Committee for five years, I was hoping that things could have been done in a
more timely manner in terms of getting information to this Committee to consider.
I think it's been acknowledged by everyone that we do need some type of lighting
ordinance. I've been told by many people about what we can do as a Council to
keep some semblance of MauL In other words, keeping Maui, MauL Growth is
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impending on this island. And if we can in some small way to preserve the
ambiance or charm of Maui, this is one possible way we can look at. So I've said
my, given you my thoughts on it, but if it's the choosing of this Committee to vote
on it so be it. If not, I do want to hear from each Member, starting with
Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. The thing that bothers me is
that the ten-year requirement and, you know, the implication to the County. How
much money it will take to replace all of those lights. You know and hearing from
the Parks Department just that one football stadium, we're looking at over
$1 million. My concern is how do we fund this thing? And I think through our
budget deliberations, you know, we got to be looking towards replacements of all
of the streetlights that we, we have here in this County except for M%ka; and
Lanai. That's the concern that I have. And the other concern that I have is in
regards to as we move forward, I can understand, you know, streetlights being
put up with low-pressure systems, low-pressure sodium. And to do away with
streetlights for me in the area that I represent because half of the people are
elderly, retired people and we need to look at their safety also. I had a call
several weeks ago in regards to theft. And after inspecting the area, you know, a
streetlight would have probably prevented that theft. So that's one of the
concerns that I have. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Chair, I await your recommendation.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No comment.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Alright, Members, the Chair has given you ample time to
comment on this matter. If this bill is voted out of Committee and if it is voted on
by the, goes on to the full Council and be approved, the public be rest assured
that if there's any concerns, this Councilor the future Council can take matters up
to possibly amend the bill. I'm looking for a compromise. I have concerns about
the full implementation of LPS.
Now, if it is the choice of this Committee to send this out to the full Council along
the way, the Chair is open to any amendments that each and every Council
member would like to make. I think we should take into consideration the
possibility of establishing some type of zone where LPS may be appropriate.
And we have to weigh the cost of this to the community. The night sky, culturally
it's been very important to Hawaii in itself. So I think we have to take into the fact
cultural considerations, concerns about our environment, all of the concerns for
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safety, and the cost to our business community. So it has always been your
Chair's intent to look for a compromise that everyone can live with.
But we've dealt with this matter for nearly five years, and I think it's time for some
type of action. The public is expecting us to at least do some type of action.
And, of course, each and every one of you have your concerns as to how we
proceed and I respect that. But at this point it is your Chair's decision to consider
a decision to be made today if that is the will of the body.
So, at this point, the Chair's recommendation is the passage of the proposed bill
as revised and the filing of the communication. Is there a motion? Seeing that
there is no motion being made on the floor, the Chair will then consider deferring
the matter if that is the choice of the body, which appears to be the situation
here.
I would like to mention to you that I don't know who will be the Chair of the Public
Works Committee next term, and it will have to be decided by that Chair whether
this bill or this matter is to be brought up again. So upon hearing no
recommendation for a vote, the Chair will entertain a motion to defer.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: If I may comment at this pOint.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. I agree, Chair, that this, this item has
been with this Council in some shape or form for the past five years. And quite
frankly, I find it very difficult for me to make a decision to move forward on what is
before us. And also considering all the information that has come before us from
the, the initial information and the request for us to consider a lighting ordinance,
an outdoor lighting ordinance through the process of the Subcommittee work.
And, as you stated, the timing of, of, quite frankly, a bill that is completely
different than what we've been able to discuss.
The reason I'm not willing to move forward today, Chair, is when we have a
segment, a very significant segment of the community coming forward with a
completely different proposal for consideration and that being given to us in the
relatively short period of time, I haven't been provided the opportunity to do the
analysis of it and do it, and compare it to the work that has been done for the
past five years. And, granted, although, there may be things that are in common,
it is still, it is still very obvious that there are some fundamental differences
between, although, everybody's, everybody who has testified supports an
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outdoor lighting ordinance in concept, the specifics or the details, so to speak, we
have a definite divide.
It is my hope that this body and the County Council, and this is a continuous
body. It will not end on December and we're in a continuum. And I feel that with
all the information that is provided, we need to go back and recognize the original
work was done by the Subcommittee and take into consideration all the work
and, and information that has been brought forth since then. And I think it's going
to take another, more fair amount of work to bring people who have come into
the process towards the tail end of this five-year time. But people need to be
brought up to speed and understand what the discussions were in the
Subcommittee. Because we are being brought, a lot of information that's being
brought forward and concerns are issues that have been discussed.
However, personally, I don't think it's to the public's best interest. And with all
due respect to you, Chair, as well as my colleagues and those present as well as
not present, it is no way my comments are meant to offend or, or demean any
position that any of you take. It is my feeling that we should continue as a
legislative body to be deliberate and to come forward with sound policy. And I
think it's going to take a considerable amount of continued analysis to put forward
such legislation, and I, quite frankly, am not comfortable with moving forward the
proposal that we have before us today. And, again, it's with all due respect to
your, your recommendation as well as to the other Members on their, on their
observation of the five-year process that we've gone through.
So, Chair, thank you for allowing me to share my comments. It's obvious that I
have hesitation in my voice that I'm being careful of what I say, and I'm doing that
for a reason. Because I want the public to understand that, for me, I'm not
comfortable with moving forward with what we have today.
I do agree the public is in need of an outdoor lighting ordinance. I think it would
be more difficult for us later on, in my opinion, to put something forward and then
try to come back to it. I think we still need to hang on to this and I still need, I still
feel that we need to have this right in front of us. The meat of it in front of us and,
and we need to, we need to continue massaging this thing. My fear is that it will
go out. You know it will, it will be hard to bring it back for the next appointment.
My personal comments, Chair, basically, and so thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Kane. Member Hokama. Okay, seeing
no other comments, the Chair will conclude by thanking the Committee Members
for your thoughts on this matter. Obviously, we have some differences but that's
the beauty of democracy. This is a significant bill in that there, we've got all
factors involved. We got technology.
We got cultural perspectives, the
environment. I think everybody has the public safety, economic concerns. I think
everybody wants to do what's best for Maui County. And one thing that's
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interesting, I think the common thread is everybody feels something needs to be
done about lighting. So, again, this is an attempt today to at least get the ball
rolling on this. But the Chair did state his intention that he wanted to have a vote
here today, however, it's become obvious that the rest of the Committee feels
otherwise, and I will respect that and honor that. So with that being said, the
Chair will then have this matter deferred, if there are no objections.
Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And thank you, Chair, and just one final comment. As a
housekeeping measure, can I, can I ask that the Committee's intention on this
particular item is that it gets passed forward or referred to the next Council and
that it does not get. ..
CHAIR MOLINA: Filed.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Filed and so we have to start from scratch. So I want to
make sure that whatever information we do have is forwarded to the next Council
so that whoever is decided upon as far as for chairing of a committee that will
take care of this particular issue that all information is intact and ready for
continued consideration.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Kane. I appreciate that then it is my hope too
that whoever is the Chair of the next Public Works Committee that they bring this
bill back up for discussion for a possible decision. And I would hope that
whoever, if it's not me, whoever is in charge does not keep it stalled or keep it
buried because I think it needs to be addressed. And if there is any indication of
someone whoever the Chair that may want to stall this or keep it buried, I will be
very vocal and make a request that it be heard in Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I have no objections to your recommendation for deferral,
Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much. No other objections to deferral? With
that being said, the Chair again thanks everyone for participating on this matter
for this particular term and, hopefully, we will be back next term to discuss this
matter once again. With that being said, this meeting is adjourned.

ACTION: DEFER.
ADJOURN:

10:57 a.m.
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